BEFORE THE

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Accusation Agéinst: Case No. 5610
WEST COAST PHARMACY, INC,, OAH No. 2016051143
dba WEST COAST PHARMACY
LLOAN MONG LE, PRES./SECY.
KIM NGUYEN STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND
aka KIM KHANH NGUYEN, PIC DISCIPLINARY ORDER AS TO
§731 Watt Avenue RESPONDENT KiM KHANH NGUYEN
North Highlands, CA 95660 ONLY
Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 50531
KIM KHANH NGUYEN
9642 McKenna Drive
Elk grove, CA 95757
Pharmacist License No. RPH 54305
and
LOAN MONG LE
3760 Monteverde Drive

Lincoln, CA 95648
Pharmacist License No. RPH 50209
Respondents.

DECISION AND ORDER

The attached Stipulaied Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby adopted by the Board of
Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this matter.
This Decision shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on January 11, 2017.

It is so ORDERED on December 12, 2016.

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

g

Amy Gutierrez, Pharm.D.
Board President
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KAMALA D. HARRIS
Attorney General of California
JANICE K. LACHMAN o
Supervising Deputy Atforney General
MALISSA N. SIEMANTEL
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 240157
1300 1 Strest, Suite 123
P.O. Box 944255
Sacramento, CA 94244-255(0
Telephone: (916) 327-7855
Facsimile: (916} 324-5567
Attorneys for Complainant

BE¥ORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

* In the Master of the Accusation Against:

WEST COAST PHARMACY, INC,,
dba WEST COAST PHARMACY
LOAN MONG LE, PRES./SECY,
KIM NGUYEN, '

aka KIM KHANH NGUYEN, PIC
53731 Wait Avenue

North Highlands, CA 95660

Pharmacy Permit No, PHY 50531,

KIM KHANH NGUYEN

9642 McKenna Drive

Elk Grove, CA 95757

Pharmacist License No. RPH 54305,
and

LOAN MONG LE

3760 Monteverde Drive

Lincoln, CA 950438

Pharmaelst License No. RPH 50209

Respondents,

Case No. 5610
OAH No. 2016051143

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND
DISCIPLINARY ORDER AS TO
RESPONDENT KIM KHANH NGUYEN
ONLY
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ITIS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-

entitled prﬁoeedings, as specified below, that the following matters are true:
| EARTIES

1. Virginia Herold (“Corﬁplainant”} is the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy
(“Board”). She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this matter
by Kamala D, Harls, Attorney General of the State of California, by Malissa N. Siemantl,
Deputy Attorney General, ﬂ

2. Respondent Kim Khanh Nguyen (*Respondent Nguyen™) is represented in this
procecding by attorney Joseplr Curren, whose address is: 6747 Fair Oaks Boulevard, Sacramento,
CA 95608, |

3. Onorabout April 15, 2003, the Board issued Pharmacist License Number RPH
54305 to Respondent Nguven, The pharmacist Hicense was in full force and effect at all times
relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on January 31, 2017, unless renewed.

JURISDICTION

4. Accusation No. 5610 was filed before the Board, and is currently pending against
Respondents. The Accusation and all other statutorily required documents were propetly sorved
on Respondents on February 19, 2016, Respondents timely filed their Notice of Defense
contesting the Accusation,

5. A copy of Accusation No, 5610 is attached as exhibit A and incorporated herein by
reference.,

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS

6. Respondent Nguyen has carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands
the charges and allegations in Accusation No. 5610. Respondent Nguyen has also carcfully read,
fully discussed with. counsel, and understands the effects of this Stipulated Settlement and
Disciplinary Ozder.

1. Respc{ndent Nguyen is fully aware of her legal vights in this matter, including the
right to a hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to confront and cross-

examing the witnasses against them; the right to presont evidence and to testify on her own
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behalf; the right to the issuance of subpoenas to compe! the attendance of wiinesses and the
production of docinuents; the right to reconsideration and com-'t review of an adverse decision;
and all other rights accorded by the California Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable
laws,
| 8. Respondent Nguyen voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up
each and every right set forth above,
CULPABILITY

9. Respondent Nguyen understands and égrees that the charges and allegations in
Accusation No, 5610, if proven at hearing, constitute cause for imposing discipline upon her
Pharmacist License.

10.  For the purpose of resolving Aceusation No. 5610 without the expense and
uncertainty of further proceedings, Respondent Nguyen agtees that, at hearing, Complainant
could establish a factual basis for the charges against her in Accusation No. 5610, and that
Respondent Nguyen hereby gives up Let right to contest those charges.

It.  Respondent Nguyen agrees that in any future disciplin‘ary proceeding before the
Board the allegations set forth in Accusation No, 5610 shall be deemed admitted.

12. Respondent Nguyen agrees that her Pharmacist License is subject to discipline and
she agrees to be bound by the Board's probationary terms as set forth in the Disciplinary 01'dér
below.

CONTINGENCY

13.  This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the Board of Pharmacy. Respondent
Nguyen understands and agress that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the Boatd of
Pharmacy may communicate directly with the Board regarding this stipulation and settlement,

without notice to or participation by Respondent Nguyen or her counsel. By signing the

stipulation, Respondent Nguyen understands and agrees that she tiay not withdraw her agresment

or seek to rescind the stipulation prior to the time the Board considers and acts upon it, If the .
Board fails to adopt this stipulation as its Decigion and Order, the Stipulated Settlement and
Digciplinary Order shall be of no foree or cifect, except for this patagraph, it shall be inadmissible
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in any legal action between the parties, and the Board shall not be disqualified from further action
by having considered this matter. |

[4. The partieé understand and agree that Portable Document Format (PDF) and facsimile
copies of this Stipulated Ssttlement and Disciplinary Order, including PDF and facsimile
signatures thereto, shall have the same force and effect as the originals.

15.  This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is intended by the parties to be an
integrated writing representing the complete, final, and exclugive embodiment of their agreement.
It supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, discussions,
negotiations, and commitments (written or oral). This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary
Ordet may not be altered, amended, modified, supplemented, or ofherwise changed except by a
writing executed by an authorized representative of each of the partics.

16. In comsideration of the foregoing admié sions and stipulations, the parties agree that
the Board may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the following
Disciphinary Order; | -

DIS CIi’LINARY ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Pharmacy License No. RPH 54305 issued fo Respondent
Kim Khanh Nguyen is revokad. However, the revocation is stayed and Respondent Nguyen is
placed on probation for five (Sj years on the following terms and conditions.

1.  Suspension

As part of probation, Respondent Nguyen is suspendéd from the practice of pharmacy for
sixty {60) days beginning the eﬂ’ectivé date of tﬁis decision,

During suspension, Respondent Nguyen shall not enter any pharmacy area or any portion of
the licensed premises of a wholesaler, veterinary food-animal drug retailer or any other distributor
of drugs which is licansed by the Board, or any manufacturer, or where dangerous drugs and
devices or controlled substances are maintained. Respondent Nguyen shall not practice pharmacy
nor do any act involving drug selection, selection of stock, mahufacturing, compounding,
dispensing ot patient consultation; nor shall Respondent Nguyéﬁ manage, administer, or be a

1
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consultant to any licensee of the Board, or have access to of control the ordering, manufacturing
or dispeﬂsiﬁg of dangerous deugs and dsvices 6r controlled substances.

Respondent Nguyen shall not engags in any activity that requires the professional judgment
of a pharmacist. Respondent Nguyen shall not direct or control any aspect of the practice of
pharmacy, Respondent Nguyen shall not perform the duties of a pharmacy technician or a
designated representative for any entity licensed by the Board.

Failure to comply with this suspension shall be considered a violation of probation.

2, Obey All Laws

Respondent Nguyen shall obey all state and federél laws and regulations.

Respondent Nguyen shall report any of the following occurrences to the Board, in writing,
within seventy-two (72) hours of such occurrence:

. an arrest or issuance of a criminal complaint for violation of any provision of the
Pharmacy Law, state and faderal food aﬁd drug laws, or state and federal controllad
substances laws

. aplea of guilty or nolo contendre in any state or federal eriminal proceeding to any
criminal complaint, information or indictment

. a conviction of any crime

. discipline, citatién, or other administrative action filed by any state or federal agency
which fnvolves Respondent Nguyen’s Pharmacist License or which is related to the
practice of pharmacy or the manufacturing, obtaining, handling, distributing, billing,
or charging for any drug, device ot cimtrolle:d substance.

* Failure to timely report such occurrence shall be considered a violation of probation,

3. Reportto the Board

Respondent Nguyen shall report to the Board quarterly, on a schedule as directed by the
Board or its designee, The report shall be made either in person or in writing, as directed.
Among other requirements, Respondent Nguyen shall state in sach repott unc’ier penalty of
pecjury whether there has been compltance with all the terins and conditions of probation. Failure

to submit timely reports in o form ag directed shall be considered a violation of probation. Any
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period(s) of delinquency in submission of reports as directed may be added to the total period of
probation. Moreover, if the final probation repott is not made ag directed, probation shall be
automatically extended until such time as the final report is made and accepted by the Board.

4. Interview with the Board

Upon receipt of reasonable priot notice, Respondent Nguyen shall appear in person for
interviews with the Board or its designee, at such intervals and locations as are determined by the
Board or its designee. Tailure to appear for any scheduled interview without prior notification to
Board staff, or failure to appear for two (2) or more scheduled inferviews with the Board or its
designee during the period of probation, shall be considered a violation of probation,

5. Cooperate with Board Staff |

Respondent Nguyen shall cooperate with the Board's inspection program and with the
Board's monitoring and investigation of Respondent Nguyen 's compliance with the terms and
conditions of her probation. Failure to cooperate shall be considered a violation of probation,

6. Continuing Education

Respondent Nguyen shall provide evidence of efforts to maiﬁtain gkill and knowledge as a
pharmacist as dirccted by the Board or its designee,

7. Notice to Employers

Dusing the period of probaﬁio n, Respondent Nguyenrshall notify all present and prospective
employets of the decision in case number 5610 and the terns, conditions and restrictions imposed
on Respondent Nguyen by the decision, as follows:
| Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this decision, and within fifteen (15) days of
Respondent Nguyen undértalcing any new emp ].oymeﬁt, Responde._nt Nguyen shall causs her
direct supervisor, pharmacist-in-charge (including each new pharmacist-in-charge employed
during Respondent Nguyen’s ten.ure of employment) and owner fo report to _the Board in writing
acknowledging that the listed individnal(s) has/have read the decision in case number 5610, and
terms and conditions imposed thereby. It shall be Respondent Nguyen’s rf:sponsibility.to énsura
that her employer(s) and/or supervisor(s) éubmit timely acknowledgment(s) to the Board,

i
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If Respondent Nguyen works for or is employed by or through a pﬁarmacy employment
service, Respondent Nguyen must notify her direct supervisor, pharmacist-in-charge, and oxlvner
at every entity licensed by the Board of the terms and conditions of the decision in case number
5610 in advance of Respondent Nguyen commencing work at cach licensed entity. A record of
this notification must be provided to the Board upon request. .

Furthermore, within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this decision, and within fifteen

{15) days of Respondent Nguyen undertaking any new employment by or through a pharmacy

employment service, Respondent Nguyen shall cause het direct supervisor with the pharmacy
employment service to report to the Board in writing acknowledging that théy hag read the
decision in case number 5610 and the terms and conditions imposed thereby. It shall be
Respondent Nguyen’s responsibility to ensure that her employer(s) and/or supervisor(s) submit
timely acknowledgment(s) to the Board, ' |

Failure to timely notify present or prospective émployer(s_} or to cause that/those
employer(s) to submit timely acknowledgments to the Board shall be considered a violation of
probation, .

"Employment" withiﬁ the meaning of this provision shall include any full-time,
part-time, temporary, relief or phatntacy management service as a pharmacist or any
position for which a pharmacist license is a requirement or criterion for employment,

whethet the respondent is an employee, independent confractor or volunteer.

8. No Suporvision of Interns, Serving as Pharmacist-in-Charge (PIC), Serving as
])cs:gimind Representative-in-Charge, or Serving as a Consultant

During the petiod of probation, Respondent Nguyen shall not supervise any intern
pharmaoist, bo the pharmacist-in-charge or designated representative-in-charge of any entity
licensed by the Board nor serve as a consultant unless otherwise specified in this ordor.
Assumption of any such unauthorized supervision responsibilities shall bo considered a violation
of probation.

i
i
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9. Reimbursement of Board Costs

As a condition precedent to successful completion of pi‘obation, Respondent Nguyen shall
pay to the Board its costs of investigation and prosscution in the amount of $7,700.25.
Respondeﬁt Nguyen shall be permitted fgo pay costs in a payment plan approved by the Board or
its designee.

There shall be no deviation from this schedule absent prior written approval by the Board or
its designee. Failure to pay costs by the deadline(s) as directed shall be considered a violation of
probation. |

The filing of bankruptey by Respondent Nguyen shall not relieve Respondent Nguyen of
her responsibility to reimburse the Board its costs of investigation and prosecution.

10, Prebation Monitoring Costs

Respondent Nguven shall pay any costs associated with pro‘bation menitoring as
determined by the Board each and every year of probation. Such costs shall be payable fo the
Board on a schc;lulo ag directed by the Board or its designee. Failure fo pay s-uch costy by the
deadline(s) as directed shall he considered a violation of probation.

11, Status of License

Respondent Nguyen shaﬂ, at all times while on probation, meintain an active, current

license with the Board, including any period during which suspension or probation is tolled.

Failure to maintain an active, current license shall be considered a violation of probation,

If Respondent Nguyen 's license expires or is cancelled by operation of law ot otherwise af
any time during tile pef.iod of probation, inchuding any extengsions thereof due fo tolling or
otherwise, uponh renewal or veapplication Respondent Nguyen's license shall be subject to all
terms and conditions of this probation not previously satisfied,

12, License Surrender While on Probaiion/Suspension

Following the effective date of this deéision, should Respondent Nguyen cease practice due
to retirement or health, or be otherwise unable o satisfy the ferms and conditions of probation,
Respondent Nguyen may tender her license to the Board for swirender. The Board or its'designee

ghall have the discretion whether to grant the request for surrender or take any other action it

8
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license to the Board within ton (10) days of notification by the Board that the surrender is

deems appropriate and reasonable. Upon formal acceptance of the; surrender of the license,
Respondent Nguyen will no longer be subject to the terms and conditions of probation. This
surrénder-constitutes a record of discipline and sflall become a part of Respondent Nguyen’s
license history with the Beard. |

Upon acceptance of the surrender, Respondent Nguyen shall relinquish her f)ockét and wall

accepted. Reépondent Nguyen may not reapply for any license from the Board for three (3) vears
from the effective date of the surrender, Respondent Nguyen shall meet all requirements
applicable to the license sought as of the date the application for that license is submitted to the

Board, including any outstanding costs,

13, Notification of 2 Change in Name, Residence Address, Mailing Address or
Employment : '

Respondent Nguyen shail notify the Board in writing within ten (10) days of any change of
employment. Said notiﬁcation éhall include the reasong for leaving, the address of the new
employer, the name of the supervisor and owner, and the work schedule if knowr. ‘Respondcnt
Nguyen shall further notify the Board in writing within ten (10) days of a change in name,
residence address, mailing address, ot phone number, '

Failure to timely notify the Board of any change in employer(s), name(s), address(es), or
phone number(s) shall be considered a violation of probation,

14. 'Telling of Probation

Exeept during periods of suspension, Respondent Nguyen shall, at all times wlliia on
probation, be eraployed as a pharmacist in California for a minimum of forty (40) hours per
calendat month. Any month during which this minimuin is not met shall toll the petiod of
probation, i.c., the peiod of probation shall be extended by one month for each month during
which this minimum is not met. During any such period of tolling of probation, Respoﬁdent
Nguyen must nonetheless comply with all terms and conditions of probation,

Should Respondent Nguyen, regardless of resilency, for any reason (including vacation)

cease practicing as a pharmacist for a minimum of forty (40} hours per calendar month in

9
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California, Respondent Nguyen must noiify the Board in writing within ten (10) days of the
cessation of practice, and must further notify the Board in writing -within ten (10) days of the
resumption of practice. Any failure to provide such notification(s) shall be considered a violation
of probation.

It is a vielation of probstion for Respondent Nguyen 's probation to remain tolled pursuant
to the provisions of this condition for a total period, counting consecutive and non-consecutive
months, exceeding thirty-six (36) months,

"Cessation of practice” means any calendar month duting which respondent is

not practicing as a pharmacist for at least forty (40) howrs, as defined by Business and

Professions Code section 4000 et seq . "Resumption of practice" means any calendar

month during which respondent is practicing as a pharmacist for at least forty (40)

houts as a pharmacist as defined by Business and Professions Code section 4000 et

seq.

15. Vielation of Probation .

If Respondent Nguyen has not complied with any term or condition of probation, the Board
shall have continuing jurisdictionA over Respondent Nguyen, and probation shall automatically be
extended, unti! all terms and conditions have been satisfied or the Board has taken other action as
deemed appropriate to ireat the fatlure to comply as a violation of probation, to terminate |

probation, and to impose the penalty that was stayed,

If Respondent Nguyen violates prabation in any respect, the Board, after giving Respondent.

Nguyen notice and an opportunitjf to be heard, may revoke probation ﬁncl carry out the
disciplinary order that was stayed. Notice and opportunity to be heard are not tequired for those
provisions stating that a viclation thereof may fead to automatic termination of the stay and/or
revocation of the license. Ifa petition to revoke probation or an accusation is filed against
Respondent Nguyen during probation, the Board shall have continuing jurisdiction and the period
of probation shall be automatically extended until the petition to revoke probation or accusation is
heard and decided. F

i
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16, Completion of Probation

Upon written notice by the Board or ity designee indicating successful completion of |
probation, Respondent Nguyen 's license will be fully restored, '

17. Remedial Education

Within sixty (60) days of the effaotive date of this decision, Respondent Nguyen shall
subnit to the Board or its designee, for priot approval, an appropriate program of remedial
education related to pharmacy operations, legal requirements and drug security. The program of
remedial education shall consist of at least five (5) hours each yedr of probation, for atotal of -
twenty-five (25} hoﬁrs, at Respondent Niguyen 's own expense. All remedial education shall be in
addition to, and shall not be credited toward, continuing education (CE) courses used for license
fenewal purposes. -

Failure to timely submit or complete the approved retedial education shall be considered a
violation of probation. Ths period of probation will be automatically extended until such
remedial education is successfully completed and written proof, in a form acceptable to the
Board, is provided to the Board ot its designeé.

Following the completion of each counrse, the Board or its designee may requits the

Respondent Nguyen, at her own expense, to take an approved examination to test Respondent

- Nguyen 's knowledge of the course, If Respendont Nguyen does not achieve a passing scote o

the examination, this failure shall be considered a violation of probation, Any such examination
failure shall require Respondent Nguyen to take anothet course approved by the Board in the
same subiect ares, : |

Respondent Nguyen shall be restricted from the practice of compounding until twelve (12)
hours of remedial education in compounding has been sucoeésfully completed.

18, Supervised Practice

During the period of probation, Respondent Nguyen shall practice only uader the
supervision of a licensed pharmacist ﬁot on probation with the Board. Upon and after the
effective date of this dec‘iéion, Respondent NQﬁyen shall not practice pharmacy and their license
shall be automatically suspended until a supetvisor is approved by- the Board or its designse. The

11
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supervision shall be, as required by the Beard or its designee, either:

Continuous — At least 75% of a work week

Substantial - At least 50% of a work week

Partial. - At feast 25% of & work week

Daily Review - Supervisor's review of probationer's daily activities within 24 hours

Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this decision, Respondent Nguyen shall have
her supervisor submit netification to the Beard in writing stating that the supervisor has read the
decision in case number 5610 and is familiar with the required level of supervision as determined
by the Board or its désignae, It shall be Respondent Nguyen’s responsibility to ensure that hesr
employer(s), pharmacist-in-charge and/er supervisor(s) submit timely acknowledgement(s) to the
Bogrd. Failure to cause the direct supervisor and the pharmacist-in-charge to submit timely
acknowledgements to the Board shall be considered & violation of probation.

If Respondent Nguyen changes employment, it shall be Respondent Nguyen’s
responsibility to ensure that her employer(s), pharmacist-in-charge and/or supervisor(s) submit
timely acknowledgement(s) to the Board. Respondent Nguyen shall have her new supervisor,
witﬁin fifteen (15) days afler employment commences, submit notification to ﬂle Board in writing
stating the dircct supervisor and pharmacist-in-charge have read the decision in case number 5610
and is familiar with the level of supervision as determined by the Board. Respondent Nguyen
shall not practice pharmacy and her license shall be automatically suspended until the Board or its
designee approves a new supervisor. Fallure to cause the direct supervisoi‘ and the pharmacist-in-
charge to submii timely acknowledgements to thé; Board shall be considered a violation of
probation. |

Within ten (10) days of leaving employment, Respondent Nguyen shall notify the Board in

writing,

During suspension, Respondent Nguyen shall not enter any pharmacy area or any portion of
the licensed premises of & wholesalet, velerinary food-animal drug retafler or any other distributor
of drugs which is licensed by the Board, or any manufacturer, or where dangetous drugs and

deviess or controllod substances are maintsined. Respondent Nguyen shall not practice pharmacy

12
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nor do any act involving drug sslection, selection éf stock, manufacturing, compounding,
dispensing or patient consulltation; nor shall Respondent Nguyen manage, administer, or be a
consultant to any licensee of the Board, or have access to or control the ordering, manufacturing
or dispensing of dangsrous drugs and controlied substances, Resp'ondent Nguyen shall not'
resume practice until notified by the Board,

During suspension, Respondent Nguyen shall not rengage in any activity that requires the
professional judgment of a pharmacist. . Respondent Nguyen shall not ditect ot control any aspect
of the practice of pharmacy. Respondent Nguyen shall not perform the duties of a phafmacy
technician or & designated representative for any entity licensed by the Board.

Failure to comply with this suspension shall be considered a violation of probation,

19. No Ownership of Licensed Premises

Resﬁond.ent Nguyen shall ﬁot own, have any legal or beneficial interest in, or serve as a
manager, administrator, member,- officer, director, trustee, associate, or partner of any business,
firm, partnership, or corporation currently or hereinaﬂér licensed by the Board. Respendent
Nguyen shall sell oy teansfer any legal or beneficial interest in any entity licensed by the Board
within ninety (90) days following the effective date of this decision and shall immediatety
thereafter provide written proof theteof to the Board. Failure to timely divest any legal or
beneficial intercst(s) or provide _documcntation thereof shall be considered a violation of
pro-bation.

20, Telling of Suspension

During the period of suspension, Respondent Nguyén shall not leave California for any
period exceeding ten (10) days, 1'egardlesé of purpose (including Yacation). Any such zbsence in
excess of the ten (10) days during suspension shall be considered a violation of probation,
Moreover, atiy absence from California during the period of suspension exceeding ten (10) days
shall toll the suspension, 1.¢., the suspension shall be extended by one day for each day over ten
(10) days Respondent Nguyen is absent from California, During any such period of tolling of
suspension, Respondent Nguyen must nonetheless comply with alt terms and conditions of
probation.

13
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ENDORSEMENT

The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully

submitted for consideration by the Board of Pharmacy.

o

Dated:} b] 2

542015104991
12482208.doc

Respectfully submitted,

KAMALA D, HARRIS
Attorney General of California
JANICE K. LACHMAN

Supervising Deputy Adtorr

General

Deputy Attorney General
Attorneys for Complainant
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| KaMALA D, HARRIS

Attorney General of California
Jarice K. LACHMAN '
Supervising Deputy Attornoy General
MarssA N. SIEMANTEL
Deputy Aitorney General
State Bar No, 240157
1300 I Street, Suite 125
P.0. Box 944255
Sacramento, CA 94244-2530
Telephone: (916} 327-7855
Facsimile: (916) 324-5567

._ Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORY THE
~BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA -

Tn the Matter of the Accusation Against:

WEST COAST PHARMACY, TNC.,

dba WEST COAST PHARMACY
LOAN MONG LE, PRES./SECY.

| KXV NGUYEN,

alaa KIM KHANH NGUYEN, PIC
5731 Watl Avenue
North Highlands, CA 95660

3l Pharmacy Pexmit No. PHY 50531,

KIM KHANH NGUYEN

9642 McXenna Drive

Elk Grove, CA 95757

Pharmacist License No. RPH 543085,

and

1l LOAN MONG LE
i 3760 Monteverde Drive

Lincoln, CA 95643

o[l Pharmacist License No. RPH 50200

Case No. 5610

ACCUSATION

Re spohdents .
i
m
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Complainaat alleges:
| PARTIES
1. Virginia Herold (“Coraplainant™) brings this Accﬁsation solely in her official capacity
as the Bxecutive Offioer of the Board of Pharmacy (“Board”), Department of Consumer Affairs,
2. Oaorsbout] anuary-llg, 2011, the Board issned Pharmacy Permit Number PHY
50531 to West Coast Pharmacy, Inc., doing business :éLS West Coast Pharmacy (“Respondent West

4. Coast Prarmacy”), with Loan Mong Le (“Respondent I.¢”) as president and secretary. On or

about July 7, 2014, Kimn Nguyen, also known as Kim Khanh Nguyen (“Respondent Nguyen™),

became the pharmacist-in-charge. Respondent West Coast Pharmacy filed a discontimiaries of

business that became sffoctive on November 16, 2015. The pharmacy permit wes cancelied on

|| Decerabrer 16, 2015, The phatmacy permit was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the

charges brought herein, ‘

3. Omnorabout April 15, 2003, the Roard issyed Pharmacist License Number RPT
54305 to Respondent Nguyen, The p];m:rrﬁacist license was in full fc;rce and effect at all times
relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on Januaky 31, 2017 , unless renewed,

4.7 Onorabout August 18, 1998, the Board issued Pharmacist Licensa.Numllaer RPH
:50209 to Respondent Le, The pharmacist license was in full force. and f?ffect at all times relevant
to the charges broughf herein and will expive on Januvary 31, 2018, unless renewed,

_ JURISDICTION ,

5. ‘This Accusation is brought befose the Board under the authority of the following
laws. All section references ae to the Business and Professions Code uless otherwise indicated. |

6. Seoction 4300 states, in pertinent part:

{a) Every Heense fssued way be suspended or revoked.

(b) The board shali dissipliné the holder of any l'iceﬁsé issued by the
boatd, whose defauit has been entered or whose case has been heard by the board and
found guilty, by any of the following methods:

(1) Suspending judgment.

- {2) Placing him or ker upon probation.

N
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(3) Suspending his or her right to practice for a peried not exceeding one
year.

(4) Reveking his or her license.

: (5) Talcing any other action. in relation fo disciplining him or her asthe
board in its discretion may deem proper. ..

7. Section 4300.1 states:

The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a board-issued
license by operation of law or by order or decision of the board or a court of law, the
placement of a license on & vetived status, or the voluntary surrender of a ticense by a
licensee shall not deprive the board of jurisdiction to cotmmence or procesd with eny
mvestigation of, or action or disciplinary proceeding against, the leensee or to retider
a decision suspending or revoking the license.

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY PROVISIONS

8,  Section 4301 states, il pertinent part:

The board shall take action against any holder of a license who ig guilty
of vmprofessional conduct or whose license has been procured by frand or
misrepresentation or issued by mistake. Unprofessional conduet shall include, but is
not limited to, any of the following: '

{(b) Incompetence.

(¢) Gross 11egiigencé.

() The violation of any of the statutes of this state, or any other state, or
of the United States regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs,

() Viclating or atternpting to violate, divectly or indivectly, or assisting in
or abetting the vielation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this
“chapter or of the applicable federal and state laws and regulations governing
pharmacy, including regulations sstablished by the board or by any other state or
federal repulatory agency . . . . ' .

9,  Section 4081 states, inpartinént part:

(a) All records of manufacture and of sale, acquisition, or disposition of
dangsrous drugs or dangerous devices shall be at all times during business hours open
to inspection by authorized officers of the Jaw, and shall be preserved for at least
thres years frotn the date of making., A current inventory shall be kept by every
menuipcturer, whelesaler, pharmacy, veterinary food-antmal drug refailer, physician,
dentist, podiatrist, veterinatian, laboratory, clinic, hospital, institution, or
establishment holding a currently valid and unrevoked certificate, license, permit,

3
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o registration, or exemption under Division 2 (commencing with Section 1200) of the :
B Health and Safety Code or under Part 4 (commencing with Section 16000) of ' oy
“ Division 9 of the Welfare and Institutions Code who maintaing a stock of dangerous

drugs or dangerous devices,

(b) The owner, officer, and pattner of any pharmacy, wholesaler, or
veterinary food-animal drug retailer shall be jointly responsible, with the
phatmacist-in-charge or representative~in-charge, for maintaining the records and
inventory described in this section . , .

i
1
i
!
i

10, Section 4105, subdivision (a), states;

All records or other dooumentation of the asquisition and disposition of
dangerous drugs and dangerous devices by any entity licensed by the board shall be
retained on the licensed premises i1 & readily retrievable form,

11, Section 4113, subdivigion (¢}, states that “[t]The pharmacist-in-charge shall be
responsible for a pharmacy’s compliance with all state and federal laws and regulations pertaining
to the practice of pharmacy.”

lé. Section 4115 states, in pertinent pact:

(2) A pharmacy technician may perform packaging, manipulative,
repetitive, or othet nendiscretionary tasks, only while assisting, and while under the

ditect supsarvision and control of a pharmacist, The pharmacist shall be responsible
for the duties perfortned under his or her supervision by a technician,

(d) The board shali adopt regulations to specify tasks pursuant to
subdivision (a) that a phatmacy technician may perform under the supervision of a
pharmacist. Any pharmacy that employs a pharmacy technician shall do so in
conformity with the regulations adopted by the board, .

(£(1) A pharmacy with only one pharmacist shall have no more than one
pharmacy techndcian performing the tasks specified in subdivision (a), The ratio of
pharmacy techuiclans performing the fasks specified in subdivision (a) to any
additional pharmacist shall not exceed 2:1, except that this.ratio shall not apply to
petgomnel performing clerical functions pursuant to Section. 4116 or 4117, This raiio :
1s applicabls to all practice settings, except for an inpatient of a licensed health
factlity, a patient of a lisensed home health agency, as specified in paragraph (2), an
dnmate of a correctional facility of the Department of Corrections and Rehabiltation,
and for a poerson recelving {reatment in a facility operated by the State Depatiment of
State Hospitals, the State Department of Developmental Services, or the Department
of Veterans Affairs. :

(2) The board 1way adopt regulations establishing the ratio of pharmacy
technicians performing the tasks specified in subdivision (a) to pharmaciyts eipplicable
to the filling of prescriptions of an inpatient of a licensed health facility and for a
patient of a licensed home health agency. Any ratio established by the board pursuant
to this subdivigion shall allow, at a miniomm, at least one pharmacy technician for a

4 .
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single pharmacist in & pharmacy and two pharmacy technicians for each additional |
pharmacist, except that this ratio shall nof apply to persennel performing clerical
functions pursuant to Ssction 4116 or 4117 ...

13, Section 4156 states:

A pharmaocy corporation shall not do, or-fail to do, any act where doing
or failing to do the act would constituté unprofessional conduct under any statute or
regulation. In the conduct of its practice, a pharmacy corporation shall observe and
bﬁ bound by the laws and regulations that apply to a person Heensed vnder this

- chapter

14.  Section 4306.5 states, in pertinent part:

Urnprofessional conduct for a pharmacist may include any of the
following: o '

_ (b) Acts or omissions that involve, in whole or in part, the failure to
exercise or implement his or her best professional judgment or corresponding
responsibility with regard to the dispensing or furnishing of controlled substances,
dangerous drugs, or denperous devices, or with regard to the provision of services . ..

15, Section 4342, subdivigion (a), states:

The board may institute atiy action or actions as may be provided by law
and that, in its discretion, are necessary, {o prevent the sale of pharmaceutical
proparations and drugs that do not conform to the standard and tests as to quality and
strength, provided in the latest sdition ofthe United States Phdarmacopoeia or the
Netional Formulary, or that violate any provision of the Sherwan Food, Drug and
Cosmetic Law (Part 5 {conumenciog with Sectlon 109875) of Division 104 of the
Health and Safety Code). : i

16. Health and Safety Code section 11153, subdivision (a), states:

A preseription for a controlled substance ghall only be issued fora
legitimate medical purpose by an individual practitioner acting in the usual course of
his or her professional practice. Tha responsibility for the proper prescribing and
dispensing of controlled substances is upon.the prescribing practitioner, but a
corresponding respongibility resis with the pharmacist who fills the prescription,
Fzoept as auhatized by this divislon, the following are not legal preseriptions; (1) an -
oxder purporting to be a preseription which is issued not in the usual course of
profeseional treatment or in legitimate and authorized research; ot (2) an oxder for an
addict or habitual user of controlled substances, which is issued not in the course of
professional treatment o as patt of an authorized narcotic treatrent program, for the
purpose of providing the user with controlled substances, sufficient to keep him or her
comfortable by maintaining customary use.

17. Health and Safety Code section 111295 siates that “[ijt is unlawiul for any person to
manufacture, sell, deliver, hold, or offer for sale any diug or device that 18 adulterated.”

H
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18, Title 21, Code of Federal Regulations (“CFR”), section 1301.75, subdivision (b),
states that “{cJontroiled substances listed in Schedules I1, 11T, IV, and V ghatl be stored in a
securely locked, substantially constructed cabinet. Howevet, pharmacies and institutional
practitioners may disperse such substances throughout the stock of noncontrolled substances in
such & manner as to obstmof the theft or diversion of the controlled substances,” .

19, Title 16, California Cod;: of Regulations (“CCR”), section 1707.2 states, in pertiﬁent -
part: '

(a) A pharmacist shall provide oral consultation to his or her pationt or the
patisni's agent in all care sottings: '

{1) upon request; or

(2) whenever the pharmacist deems it warranted in the exercise of his or
her professional judgment, :

{£)(1) In addition to the obligation to consult setforth in subgection (a), &
pharmacist shall provide oral consultation to his or her patient or the patient's agent in
any care setting in which the patient or agent is present:

(A) whenever the prescription drug has not previously been dispensed to.
a patient; or :

‘ B) whensver 1 preseription drug not previously dispensed o a patient in
the same dosage form, strength or with the same written. directions, is digpensed by
the phatmecy . . . '

20. Title 16, CCR, section 1711 states, in pertinent part:

(a) Each pharmacy shall establish or participate in an established quality
assarance program which documents and assesses medication errors to determine
cause and an appropriate response as patt of a mission to improve the quality of
pharthacy service and prevent errors. Co

(b) For purposes of this section, "medication error” means any variation
frorn & prescription or drug order not suthorized by the prescriber, as described in
Section 1716, Medication srror, a3 daficed in the section, does not inchide any
variation that is correctsd prior to furnishing the drug to the patient or patient’s agent
or any variation allowed by faw. :

(&) %1) Each quality assurance program shall be managed in accordance
with written policies and procedures maintained in the pharmacy in an immediately
retrievable form. : ' . '

(2) When a pharmacist determines that a medication error has ocourred, a
pharmacist shall as sobn a8 possible:

i
6
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) (A) Communicate to the patient or the iaatient’s agent the fact that a
medication etror has ocourred and the steps required to avoid injury or ruitigate the
error. '

(B) Communicate to the prescriber the fact that a medication error has
oocurred.

: (d) Each pharmecy shall use the findings of its quality assurance program
to develop phatmecy systems and workflow processes desighed to prevent medication
errors. An investigation of each medicatjon error shall commence as soon. as is
reasonably possible, but no later than 2 business days from the date the medication
erot I8 discovered. All medication errors discovered shall be subject to a quality
assurance review,

(8) The primary purposs of the quality assurance review shall be to
advance error prevention by analyzing, individually and collectively, investigative
and other pertinent data collected in response to & medication error to assess the cause
and any contributing factors such as system or provess failures. A record of the

quality assurance review shall be immediately retrievable in the pharmacy. The
record shall contain at leasi the following:

1. the date, location, and participants in the quality assurance ravievw;

2. the pertinent data and other information relating to the medication
error(s) reviewed and documentation of any patient contact required by subdivision

(c};

. 3. the findings and determinations generated by the quality assurance
review; and, :

4. recominend changes to pharmacy policy, procedurs, systems, or
processes, if any.

The pharmacy shall inform pharmacy personnel of changes to pharmacy
policy, provedures, systems, or ptocesses made as a result of recommendations
generated in the quality assurance progrant,

6] Tﬁe record of the quality assurance review, as provided in subdivision
(e) shall be immediately retrievable in the pharmacy for at least one year from the
date the record was created . ., .

21:  Title 16, CCR, section 1714 é'tates, in pertinent part:

(b) Bach pharmacy licensed by the board shall maintain its facilities,
space, fixtures, and equipment so that drugs ave safely and properly prepared,
maintained, secured and distributed.’ The pharmacy shall be of sufficient size and
uncbstructed area to accommodate the safs practice of pharmacy.

(WEST COAST PHARMACY, INC) ACCUSATION




d) Bach pharmacist whilé on duty shall be responsible for the securily of
the presoription department, including provisions for effective control against theft or
diversion of dangerous drugs and devicss, and records for such drugs and devices . ..

22,  Title 16, CCR, section 1715.6 states that “[t[he owner shall report to the Board within

thirty (30) days of discovery of any loss of the controlled substances, including their amounts and
strengths.” :
23, Title 16, CCR, section 1735.2 states, in pertinent part: i

?

(g} All chemicals, bulk drug substances, drug products, and other
components used for drug compounding shall be stored and used according to
compendial and other applicable requirements to maintain their integrity, poteney,
quality, and labeled sttength, = © '

(h) Bvery compounded drug product shall be given an expiration date
representing the date beyond which, in the professional judginent of the pharmacist . _
performing ot supervising the compounding, it should not be used. This "beyond use ;
date" of the comipounded drog product shall not exceed 180 days from preparation or :

" the shortest expiration date of any component in the compounded drug produet,
unless a longer date is supported by stability studies of finished drugs or compounded
drug products using the same components and packaging, Shorter dating than set
forth in this subsection may be used if it is deemed appropriate in the professional
judgment of the responsible pharmacist.

(N-Prior to allowing any drug product to be compounded in a pharmacy,
the phermecist-in-charge shall complete a self-agsessment for compounding
pharmacies developed %y‘the‘ boerd. (Incorporated by reference is "Community -
Pharmacy & Hospital Outpatient Pharmacy Compounding Self-Assessment™ Forn
17M-39 Rev. 02/12.) That form. contains a fivst section applicable to all
compounding, and & sscond section applicable to sterile injectable compovnding. The
firgt section mmst be cotnpleted by the pharmacist-in-charge before any compounding
is performed in the pharmacy. The second section must be completed by the
pharmacist-in-charge before any sterile injectable compounding is performed in thoe,
pharniacy, The applicable sectiong of the self-assessment shall subsequently be

- sompleted hefore July 1 of each odd-mumbered vear, within 30 days of the start ofa
new pharmacist-in-charge, and within 30 days of the issuance of a new {Jharmacy
license. The primary purpose of the self-assessment ig to promote cotupliance through
self-examination and edycation.

24, Tille 16, CCR, section 1761 glates:

- (2) No pharmacist shall compound or.dispense any presctiption which
containg any significant error, dmission, irregularity, uncertainty, ambiguity or
alteration. Upon recaipt of any such prescription, the pharmacist shall contact the
prescriber to cbtain the information needed to validate the prescription.

(b) Bven after conferving with the presoriber, a pharmacist ghall not
compound or dispense a controlled substance prescription where the pharmacist

g
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knows or has objective reason to know that said prescription was not issued for a
legitimate medical purpose.

25.  Title 16, CCR, seotion 1793.2 states, in pettinent part:

"Nondiscretionary tasks" as used in Business and Professmns Code
section 4115, include:

(a) removing the drug or drugs from stock . , .

COST RECOVERY

26.  Section 125.3 provides, in psrtinent part, that a Board may request the adnﬂnistratiﬁ
law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of the licensing
act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the fnvestigation and enforcement of the
case,

DRUG CLASSIFICATIONS

27, “Quaifenesin with codeine syrup” is a Schedule V controlled substance es designated
by Health and Safety Code section 11058, subdivision (c)(1), and is used to treat congh.

28, “Peréolonei’Rt;xicodone” are brandl names for oxycodone. Oxyeodone is a Schedule
il cbntrolled substance as designated by Health and Safsty Code section 11055, subdivision
(B(L)M). Oxycodone is wsed to troat pain.

29. %Phencrgan” is a brand name for promethazine. Promethazine with codeing syrﬁp. iga
- Schedule V controlled substance as designated by Health and é‘,afety Code section 11058,
subdivision (c)(1), and is used to treat cough.

30, “Norco” i a brand name for hydrocodone bitartrate aﬁd acotaminophen. and is used to.
treat pain. Norco is a Schedule It controlled subitance pufsuaut to Title 21, CFR, section
1308.12. ' '

31, "Xanax," abrand name for alprazolam, is a Schedule TV controlied substance as
designated by Health and Safsty Code section 11057, subdivision ()(1). Xanax is used to treat
anxiety, ‘ . |

32.  “Dolophine”, a brand name for methadone, is a Schedule I controlled suf:).stanca'as
designated by Health a;ﬁd Safety Code section 11055, subdivision (c)(14). Dolophine is used to

treat pait.
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33, "Soma”, & brand name for cariscprodol, is a Schedule IV Controlled Substance as
designated by Title 21, CFR, section 1308.14, subdivision (¢)(6), a}nd is nsed to treat muscle
Spams. '

34,  Ali ofthe above controlled substances are dangerous drugs pursuant to section 4022,

STATEMENT OF FACTS

35.  Omnor about June 2, 2015, a Board ijlspec‘oc;r went to West Coast Pharmacy to conduct
an inspection. Thers wers several stnployess wotking in the pharmacy af that time, including
pharmacy tachnicians, TCH K., TCH O.G., TCH S, and TCH J.G. Respondent Nguyen was the
only pharmacist on duty, | '

36. The inspector obssrved two large safes located near the .south side counter, The Isft
safe contained Schedule III to V conitolled substances and certain expensive non-controlled
medications; the right safa contained Scheduls IT controlled substances, The doors to both safes
were unlocked during the entire inspection. The inspector observed TCE K. remove controlled

substances from the safes, take them to the front filling counter, and replace drugs inthe safes

|| throughaut ths inspection, The safes were not visible from the front filling counter whers

Respondent Nguyen was working. Respondent Nguyen admitted that the safes were unlocked
while she was in the pharmacy and that the technicians had access to them. On two occasions,
the imspector observed delivery drivers enter the pharmacy (the drivers colleoted presoriptions for
delivery) and visit with pharmacy employees. One ofthe drivers walked past the drug safes and
entored the ﬁathroomt . | '

37, The inspector asked Respondeﬁt Nguyen if there were ever aty presoription errors

|- made in the pharmacy. Respondent Nguyen admitted that sonae prescription errors had ocourred

| within the last year, that the most recent error had occurred within the last month, and that she did

1ot docursent the error. |

38, TCHS. was working next to the cash register and handled almost all ofthe
transactions. The inspector observed TCH S. repeatedly ask patients who were picking up »
medications whether they had any questions for the pharmacist. TCH 8. told the inspector later

that she was frained to ask the question on new presoriptions, which had an “N° on the receipt.

10
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After each transaction, TCH S put a portion of the receipt in the trash. The inspector retrisved 15
receipts, 14 of which were maried with an “N”, ‘indicating that they were new prescriptions. The
inspector did not see Respondent Nguyen consult any patients during the entire inspection.

39. TCHXK. was working at the front counter, filling preseriptions and placing the baskets
to her left or on the floor for Respondent Nguyen to verify, On multiple occasions, the inspebtor
observed TCH O.G. pull drugs from the drug shelves or the drug order delivery totes and place
them in presoription baskets, TCH 0.G. would then take the baskets to the front filling counter
and place ther on the connter or on the floor between Respondent Neuyen and TCH K,

40, The ms;pector reviewsd various prescnptmn documents on file at the pharmacy,
mcludmg prescription mumber 228880, dated May 26, 2015, whmh had been written for 100
tablets of oxycodons 30 mg. Respondent Nguyen told the inspector that shs filled the

|| prescription and that it was dispensed to the patient. Respondent Nguyen stated that she did not

{ill all controlled substance prescriptions, Respondent Nguyen retrieved a copy of a prescription

' ‘dated May 7, 2015, that she refiised to fill after calling the prescriber und determining that it had

been forged. The forged prescription. matohed preseription nimber 228880 in several respects.
Respondent Nguyen admitted that she should have verified the prescription.

41, The inspector examined the compounding area and found that there was no
compounding self assessment in the phermacy, There were also expired drugs and drug products
above and below the compounding counter, which the inspeotqr later determined had been used in
the p‘reparatio‘n of certain compounded prescriptions and dispensed to patients. Several expired
drugs were labeled with a retest date. The inspector dsked Respondent Nguyen if any of the
drugs which were past their retest date had been tested. Respondent Nguyen admitted that they
had mot been tested, . | ' '

42. 'When the pharmacy was closed, the inspector had Respondent Nguyen cotplete a
oomﬁ: ofthe stock on hand of four drugs, methadone 10 mg, hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 mg,

axyoodone 30 mg and elprazolam 2 mg. Respondent Nguyen counted the pharmacy’s inventory

! Drugs which are laheled with a rotest date must be tested for stability before the retes; '
date is reached. Without a stability test, the drugs are not asgured to be of suitable integrity.

11
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of the drugs and noted them on a form provided by the inspector. Respondent Nguyen gave the

9| inspector a controlled substance inventory dated May 29, 2014, The inspector requested the

- pharmacy’s disposition records for the period from May 29, 2014 to June 2, 2015,

43, Onor about June 3, 2015, the inspector called Respondent Nguyen and requested
copies of two completed Report of Theft or Loss of Comtrolled Substances (DEA. 106) forms
which he found during the inspection. Respondent Nguyen faxed the inspector copies ofboth
forms, one.dated September 4, 2014, and the other dated Octobet 9, 2014, The.forms indicated
that the pharmacy had been broken into at night and that certain comtrolled substances,
guaifenesin/codeine syrip, promothazine/codeine syrup, carisoprodol 350 mg, and alprazolam (in
various doses), had been stolen. Respondent Nguyen told the mspector she completed the DEA
forms and estimated tﬁe total logs on each form. Res@ndent Nguy'en admitted that she did not
conduet a subsequent itventory to determire the exact amount of the losses or report the thefis to
the Board. That same day, Respondent Nguysn provided the inspector with the pharmacy’s

disposition records, an invoice for controlled substances received on June 3, 2015, a drug

“inventory conducted by Respondent Nguyen on June 3, 2015, and a dispensiog record for June 3,

2015. Respondent Nguyen admitted the thofts were not reporied to the Board.

44,  Ia or about June 2015, the inspector requested aud obtained sales and credit
information from three of the pharmacy’s wholesaless,

45, On or about July 27, 2‘071 5, the inspector teceived an email from Respondent Nguyen,

admitting that minor errors had ogcurred in the pharmacy, such as miscourdts, “wrong NDO's” or
4 p g

'i}_' wrong sizes, and that she had not completed incident reports of the errots.

46, The mspeoter determined based on the dispensing records, the records provided by’

) the wholesalers, the drug inventories, the DEA 106 forms, and the June 3, 2015 invoice that the

pharmacy had significant shortages of § of 12 controlled substances and notable overages of 5 of

the 12 drugs for the audit period from May 29, 2014 1o June 3, 2015, as gt forth below in

:'i_ paragraph 49, subparagraph (b). |

i ’
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FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

' {Failare to Maintain Pharmacy, Fixtures, and Equipment
$0 that Drugs Were Safely and Properly Secured)

47. - Respondents West Coast Pharmacy, Nguyen and Le are subject fo diseiplinary action

(| pursuant to section 4301, subdivisions (o) and (f), for unprofessional conduct, in that Respondents

failed to maintain the pharmacy and its facilities, space, fixtures and/or equipment so that drugs
were safely and ﬁroperly secursd, in violation of Title 16, CCR, section 1714, subdivision (b),
and failed to store Schedule If, 1T, IV, and V Controlled Su‘bstances in securely io cked,
substantially constructed cabinets, in viclation of Title 21, CFR, section 1301.75, subdivision (b),
as follows:

a. O or abowt September 4, 2014, Respondent Nguyen completed a DEA 106 foml,

- indicating that the pharmacy had been brolen jnto at might and that 2,365 milliliters (ml) of

guaifenesin/codsine syrup and 6,622 ml of p;omethaziﬂe!co deine syrup had been taken. Further,

4 || Respondents failed to safsly and properly secure the pharmacy to prevent additional thefts of

controlled substances, as follows: On or about October 9, 2014, Respondent Nguyen completed a

: 1| DEA 106 formn, indicating that the pharmacy had once again been broken into at night end that

500 tablets of alprazolam 0,25 mg, 500 tablets of alprazolam 0.5 mg, 2,000 tablets of alprazolam
1 mg, 500 tablels of alprazolam 2 mg, 1,000 tablets of carisoprodu_l 350 mg, and 1,892 ml of
guaifenesin/codeine syrup Lad been taken.

‘b Respondents storsd their complete hivam'ory of controlled substances in two safes
which were unlocked, as set forth 111 paragraph 35 above, and placed the safes m & location or
position, enabling pharmacy technicians to access the con;trolled_substances without being -
observed and supervised by a pharmacist. Further, on two occasions duting the inspection of ‘
June 2, 2015, delivery drivers entered the pharmacy and had aécesslto the drug stock atea and
safes without supervision by the pharmacist. | _

¢.  Onand between May 29, 2014 and Tune 3, 2015, Respondents failed to maiutain their
premises so that drugs were secured fom fhsft or other types of losses, resulting in significant
shortages of the following controlfed substances:

13
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[Drug Unidts Shortage
alprazolam (.25 mg Tablets 1258
alprazolam 0.5 mg Tablets -1,537
alprazolam 2 mg Tablets -855
cxyoodone 30 mg Tablsts 30

' Total - 2,680
promethazine/codeine liguid  ml -10,381

Total -10,381

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Failure to Report Loss of Controlled Substances)

48. Respondents West Coast Pharmacy, Né“uyeu and Le are subject to disciplinary action.

.| pursuant to section 4301, subdivision (o), for unprofessional conduet, in that Respondents

|| violated Title 16, CCR, section 1715.6 by failing to teport to the Board the thefts or losses of the

controlled substances guaifenssin/codeine syrup, promethazine/codeine syrup, carisoprodol 350

mg, and alprazolam (various doses), as-documented on the DEA 106 forms, within thirty (30)

days of discovery of the losses. _
THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLING
{(Failure to Maintain 2 Current Inventory of All Dangerous Diugs)

49,  Respondents West Coast Pharmacy, Nguyen and Le are subject to disciplinary action

pursnant to section 4301, subdivision (o), for unprofesslonal conduct, in that Respondents

1 violated sections 4081, subdivision (&), and 4105, subdivision. (o), by failing to meintain an -

aceurato o1 current nventory of all Jangerous drugs in the pharmacy, as follows:

8. Respondents failed to conduet an inventory of their driyg stock: following the thefls of

1 the controlleli substances documented on the DEA 106 forts, as set forth in paragraph 43 sbove.

b.  Onand betwoen May 29, 2014 and Fune 3, 2015, Respondents failed to maintain an
accutats or curtent invenlory of all dangerous drugs in the pharmacy, resulting in significant

shortages and overages of the following controlled substances:

7
T
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Drug' Shortage or Overage

alprazolem 0.25 mg -258 tablets
alprazolam 0.5 mg 1 -1,537 tablets
alprazolam 1 mg 261 tablots
alprazolam 2 mg -855 tablets
guaifenesin/codeine ligquid 2,636 mi

hydrocodone/APAD 10/325 mg | 44 tablets
hydrocodone/APAP 5/325 mg 755 tablets
methadone 10 mg 120 tablets
oxycodone 30 mg 30 tablets
promethazine/codeins licuid | ~10,381 ml

FOQURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
. (Failure to Provide Oral Consultation to Patients)

50. Respondents West Coast Pharmacy, Nguyen and Le are subject to disciplinary action

| 1| pursuant to section 4301, subdivision (o), for unprofessional conduct, in that Respondents

2"l| violated Title 16, CCR, section 1707.2, subdivisions (a)(1) and (2) and (b)()(4) and (B), as

follows: On or about June 2, 2015, during the inspection of West Coast Pharmacy, Respondent

1471 Nguyen failed to provide any oral consultations fo pitients despite the fact that at least 14 patients

5 had picked up prescriptions which had been matked &8 new, as set forth in paragraph 38 above,

{61 Further, TCH S. was observed scresning patients with new prescriptions by asking if they had any

questions for the i)harmaoist..

TIFTH CAUSK FOR DISCTPLINE

(Faibure to Comply with Quality Assurance Program)
51. Respoﬁdents West Coast Pharmacy, Nguyen and Le are subject to disciplinary action
pursuait to section, 4’:»;01, subdivision (0), for vmprofessional conduct, in that Respondents
g violated Title 16, CCR, section 1711, as follows: Respon&ents failed o complete or have
available at the pharmacy any tacords pertaining to medication errors, quality assurance reports or

quality assurance reviews despite the fact that preseription ervors had occurred in the pharmacy

during the year prior to June 2, 2015, inchiding miscoumts, “wrong NI2C’s” or wrong sizes.

i\

A
RN,
15

{WEST COAST PHARMACY, INC.) ACCUSATION

|
1
i
i
i
i




SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Violation of the Pharmacy LaW/Pﬁarmacy Technieian to Pharmacist Ratio)
$2.  Respondents West Coast Pharmacy, Nguyen and Le are subject to disciplinary action
pursuant to section 4301, subdivision (0}, for unprofessional conduct, in that Respondents
violated section 41135, subdivisions (d) and ()(1), as follows: On or about June 2, 2015, during
the ingpection of West Coast Pharmacy, Respondents authorized or allowed TCH K., and TCH
O.G. to perform pharmacy technician duties at the same time (YCH K. was observed filling
prescriptions while TCH O.G. was removing dangerous drugs from the drug stock to be used for

filling presoriptions) when, in fact, Respondent Nguyen was the ouly pharmacist on duty.

SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Failure to Exereise Corresponding Responsibility with Regard to
the Dispenying or Furniéhiug of Conirolled Substances) -

53. Reépondents West C'oas.'t Pharmacy, Nguyen aud Le are subject to disciplinary action
pursuant to sections 4301 and 4306.5 for unprofessional conduct in that Respondants faifed to
exercise o1 implement their best professional judgment or corresponding responsibility with
regard to the dispensing or furnishiog of control}ed éxlbstances and dangerous drugs, as follows;
On or about May 26, 2015, Respondeﬁts dispeﬁ.sed prescription number 228880 for 100 tablets of
oxycodons for & patient without verifying the legitimacy of the prescription or ensuring that it
was jssued for 2 legitimate medical purpose despite irregularities in the prescription, including the

distance from the preseriber and the patient to the phacmacy and the similarity between the

|| preseription ard the forged presctiption dated May 7, 2015, identified in paragraph 40 above,
|| The two prescriptions had the same pre-printed prescriber information, general format,
|| prescrintion pad identifying rumber, diug, quantity, strength, and general directions, Further, the

iy handwriting and signatures appeared the same,

- EIGHTI CAUSE FOR DISCIPLING
{Dispensing a Prescripilon Containing Sigoificant Xyror, Omission, Trregularity, ete,)

54.  Respondents West Coast Dharmacy, Neguyen and Le ate sutbject to diseiplinary action

- pursuaut'to section 4301, subdivision (c), for unprofessional conduct, in that Respondenis
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violated Title 16, CCR, section 1761, subdivision. (a), as follows: Respondents dispensed a
presoription conlaining significant frregularities without contacting the prescriber to obtain the
irrformation needed to validate the prescription, as set forth in paragraph 53 above.

NINTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Complete Compounding Self-Assessment)

55.  Respondents West Ceast Pharmacy, Nguyen and Le are subject to disciplinary sction

K |l pursuant to ssction 4301, subdivision (o), for unproféssional conduct, in that Respondents

| violated Title 16, CCR, section 1735.2, subdivision (1, as follows: Respondents failed to
. complete or have availabls at the pharmacy a compounding self aésessment, as get forth in
péragraph 41 above. |
TENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINT,
(Componnding Preseription Drug Preparations Using Expired Drugs)

56. Respondents West Coast Pharmacy, Nguyen and Lo are subject to disciplinary action
prusuant 1:0" ssotion 4301, subdivision (o), for lmprofassiénal con&luct, in that Respondents
violated Health and 3afsty Cods section 111295 and Title 16, CCR, section 1735.2, subdivision
(), as follows:

8. Respondents and/or their pharmacy technicians compounded the following

presctiption drug prepatations using drugs that were beyond their expiration. date. Consequently,

the drugs wers adulterated and unsafe for patient use, Further, Respondents failed to tost the
I expired drogs for stability, dispensed the presotiptions to patients, and gave the drugs a longer

beyond use date than the expived ccmiaoncnts used in the ding preparations.

Date Ingredient Lot No. Documented | Beyond use
expiration _date given for
date preseription

03/27/2015 | esteiol nowder 111512725 11/23/2014 09/27/7.015

03/27/2015 | tesiosterone powder 1302190904 | 06/08/2014 09/27/2015

04/23/2015 | testosterone oypicnate powder | 1210010079 | 06/19/2014 None

documented

05/08/2015 | testosterone powder 1302190904 | 06/08/20]14 117082015

05/15/2015 | estriol powder 111512235 11/23/2014 1072015

05/15/2015 | teslosterome vowder 1302190904 | 06/08/2014 1042015

05/18/2015 | testosierone cypionate powder | 1210010079 | 06/19/2014 10/2015
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b.  Respondents and/or their pharmacy technicians prepared 13 compounded prescription
preparations and stored them for firture use n jars that were labeled for ndividual patients, some
of which were dated as far back as June 22, 2011 (the beyond use dates on. the prescription Iabels
were handwritten), Futher, some o;’:‘ these labeled compounded preseriptions had the date

changed several times with progressively longer dates, and five of the products were ex;':ired past

B the last handwiitten date. In addition, Respondents failed to conduct any stability studies to

oxtend the beyond use dates of fhese cotmpounded drug products.
 ELEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPTINF,
(Failure to Store Drugs/Components Used fu Compounding in a Manner
to Maintain their Integrity, Potency, Quality, and Lab eled Strength)

57, Respondents West Coast Pharmacy, Nguyen and Le are subject to disciplinary action .
pursuant to section 4301, subdivision (o), for unprofessional conduet, in that Respondents
violated section 4342, subdivision (a),.HeaIi:h and Safsty Code section 11 1295 , and Title 116,
CCR, section 1735.2, subdivision (g), as follows:

3. Respondents stored the following expired drugs, commonly used in compounding

preseription preparations, en the drug stock shelves intsrmingled with non-expired drugs,

Further, Respondents failed to test any drugs for stability in order to extend the manufacturer’s

labeled expiration dutes.

Drug . Package Size '| Expivation or rvetest date
evelobenzapring HCI, 25 grams Exp. 08/2014 N
testosterone cypionate 25 grams Retest 06/19/2014
testosterone micronized 100 grars Retest 06/08/2014
7-keto DHEA micronized 25 prams Retest 06/05/2014
lidocaine HCLL 100 grams Retest 12/27/2014

| Hothyronine sodium 250 milHgrams Retest 05/31/2014
nifediping . 5 grams Retest 03/30/2014
methyliestostsrone 5 grams Bap. 12/2014
amitriptytine HOL 25 grams Retest 03/2015

b, Respondents and/or their employess prepared 13 compounded prescription
preparations and stored them for firturs use in jars that were labeled for individual patients, sorn

of which were dated as far back as June 22, 2011, Further, five of the products wete eﬁpired past
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the last handwriﬁen date on the preseription label.

¢.  Respondents stored a 30 gram size jar in the compounding area that was labeled
“Biest” without any indication on the label as to the active ingredients, manufacturer, fot number
or expiration date of the prescription drugs it contained, Furthet, om or about May 18, 2015,
Respondents” employes, TCH J.G,, used the “Biest” to compound a preseription preparation.

TWELETH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
{Incompetence)

58 Respondents West Coast Pharmacy, Nguyen and Le ave subject to dlsczplmary actmn
pursuani to ssotion 4301, subdms:on (b), for unprofessional conduct, in, that Respondents
commmed acts or OmISSIOI]S ccnstitutmg incompetence, as set forth in paragraphs 47 to 57 abovs,

THIRTEENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE,
(Gross Negligence)

59.  Respondents West Coast Pharﬁnaoy, Nguyen and Le are subject to disoiplinary action
puasuant to gection 4301, subdivision (¢), for uaprofessional conduct, in that Reépondents
committed acis ot omiésions constituting gross negligence, as set foith in paragraphs ;47 to 57
above, | B

PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests thet a hearing be held on the matters herein afleged,
and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy {ssue a decision: .

1. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Permit Number PHY 50531, issued to West Coast
Pﬁarmacy, Tne,, doing business as West Coast Pharmaé:y; _

2, Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License Number RPIH 54305, issued to Kim
Nguyen, also known as Kitn Kharth Nguyen,

3. Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License Number RPH 50209, issued o Loan
Mong Le; . l .

4. Ordering West Coast Pharmacy, Inc., doing business ag West Coast Pharmacy, Kitn

g Nguyaﬁ, also known as Kim Khanh Nguyen, and Loan Mong Lo to pay the Board of Phanmacy

gl 4
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the reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and

Professions Code section 125.3; and

5. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and prgper,

|| paTED: A / 5:/ G d@fﬂ%‘w

VIRGINIAHEROLD
ExagutivgOfflcer
Board of Pharmacy

Department of Conswmer Affairs

State of California
Complainant
SA2015104991
1210068 1.doc
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